
GRANT R. CLAYTON (Utah State Bar No. 4552)
WESLEY M. LANG (Utah State Bar No. 4613)
CLAYTON, HOWARTH & CANNON, P.C.
6965 Union Park Center, Suite 400
Cottonwood Heights, Utah  84047
P.O. Box 1909
Sandy, Utah 84091-1909
Telephone: (801) 255-5335
Facsimile: (801) 255-5338

Attorneys for Plaintiff,
SANSEGAL SPORTSWEAR, INC. 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF UTAH, CENTRAL DIVISION

SANSEGAL SPORTSWEAR, INC.

Plaintiff,

vs.

GEORGE B. LIPSON, JOHN DOES 1-5,
and JANE DOES 1-5, 

Defendants.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

COMPLAINT
(Jury Trial Demanded)

Civil No. 2:08-cv-102
Magistrate Judge Paul M. Warner

Plaintiff SANSEGAL SPORTSWEAR, INC. (hereinafter “Sansegal”), by and through counsel,

complains against Defendant George B. Lipson (hereinafter "Lipson"),  John Does 1-5, and Jane

Does 1-5  (hereinafter “Defendants”) and alleges as follows:
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IDENTITY OF PARTIES

1. Sansegal Sportswear, Inc. is a Utah Corporation having its principal place of

business at 611 West 9560 South, Sandy, Utah 84070.

2. Upon information and belief, George B. Lipson is an individual having an address

of 870 Spangler Mill Road NE, Floyd, Virginia 24091. 

3. Upon information and belief, Defendants John Does 1-5 and Jane Does 1-5, are

believed to be agents or representatives of George Lipson, or individuals associated with George

Lipson or corporations or other entities related to or formed by George Lipson.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. This is an action arising, in part, under the laws of the United States, including 15

U.S.C. § 1125 (Lanham Act § 43), and related Utah state law.  Thus, original subject matter

jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1338.

5. The state law claims asserted herein arise out of facts common to the federal

claims, all of which are so related that they form part of the same case or controversy, and would

be expected to be tried in a common action.  This Court also therefore has supplemental

jurisdiction over the state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants by virtue of their transacting

and doing business in this state, their conducting infringing activity in this state, and their causing

other tortious injury in this state.

7. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

8. Sansegal is a leader in the clothing industry.  Sansegal is a national sportswear

company that sells primarily directly to corporate retail clients.  Sansegal provides screenprinting,

embroidery, garment design, manufacturing, and importing servcies for, inter alia, the resort,

retail and catalog markets.  Sansegal distributes its clothing products through various retail

outlets, stores and establishments, and Sansegal’s products are sold all over the United States and

throughout the world.

9. Sansegal is the owner of U.S. Trademark Registration no. 2089226 filed on

August 21, 1996, for the mark GREEN BRAND used in connection with, inter alia, clothing, 

namely, shorts, jackets, shirts, pants, tee shirts, sweat shirts, and tank tops.  The registration date

is August 19, 1997.  The Certificate of Registration is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

10. Sansegal has a date of first use of the GREEN BRAND mark at least as early as

1996.  As a result of Sansegal’s widespread and continuous use of the mark GREEN BRAND,

Sansegal owns valuable rights in the GREEN BRAND mark.

11. Upon information and belief, Defendants are engaged in the clothing business.

12. Upon information and belief, Defendants are using the mark GREEN LABEL in

connection with clothing, as depicted on Defendants’ web site at the domain name

greenlabel.com, a print from which is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

13. Upon information and belief, Defendant Lipson is the owner of U.S. Trademark

Application Serial No. 78/727,821 for the mark including a design, used in connection with

clothing, namely, t-shirts; pants; shorts; knit tops; sweaters; fleece wear, namely, sweat pants;
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sweat shorts; sweatshirts and jackets; sweatshirts; sweat suits; under garments; sleepwear

pajamas; loungewear; socks; gloves; outerwear, namely, coats; jackets and sweaters.    The

record of Lipson's U.S. Trademark Application Serial No. 78/727,821 is attached hereto as

Exhibit C.

14. Lipson filed U.S. Trademark Application Serial No. 78/727,821 on October 2 ,

2007, after the filing date of Sansegal’s U.S. Trademark Registration No. 2089226.

15. Upon information and belief, as indicated on Lipson's U.S. Trademark

Application Serial No. 78/727,821, Lipson's date of first use of his mark is May 14, 2005, well

after Sansegal’s date of first use of its mark.

16. Defendants’ use of the GREEN LABEL mark constitutes unlawful infringement

of Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND mark.

17. As a result of Defendants’ wrongful conduct, Sansegal has suffered damages in an

amount to be proven at trial.

18. The damage and harm to Sansegal arising from Defendants’ acts of infringement

of the GREEN BRAND mark is not fully compensable by money damages, but rather results in

irreparable harm to Sansegal.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Trademark Infringement - 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a))

19. Plaintiff Sansegal hereby realleges and incorporates by this reference paragraphs 1

to 18 above as if fully set forth herein.
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20. A significant segment of the consuming public recognizes Sansegal’s GREEN

BRAND mark as being distinctive of and identifying a high quality product associated with a

single source.

21. Defendants’ infringing use of the GREEN LABEL mark is substantially likely to

cause confusion among the consuming public as to the origin of Defendants’ products.

22. Upon information and belief, Defendants’ infringement of Sansegal’s trademark is

willful and wanton, with intent to injure Sansegal.

23. Sansegal has been damaged and continues to be damaged by Defendants in an

amount to be established at trial, including Defendants’ profits and Sansegal’s lost profits, plus

punitive damages.

24. Sansegal has no adequate remedy at law for the damage to its reputation and

goodwill and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless Defendants are enjoined from their

infringing and illegal conduct.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Unfair Competition - 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a))

25. Plaintiff Sansegal hereby realleges and incorporates by this reference paragraphs 1

to 24 above as if fully set forth herein.

26. Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND mark is distinctive and has acquired recognition

value as a trademark symbol in the mind of purchasers in Sansegal’s and Defendants’ trade area,

as a result of Sansegal’s promotion and sales of its goods.
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27. Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND mark is distinctive and has acquired recognition

value as a trademark, and has come to designate to the relevant purchasers an indication of

source. 

28. Defendants have engaged in unfair competition prohibited by the Lanham Act

§ 43(a) [Title 15 of the United States Code §1125(a)] in that Defendant has used Sansegal’s

GREEN BRAND mark in connection with Defendant’s goods as a false designation of origin, a

false or misleading description and representation of fact, which is likely to cause confusion, and

to cause mistake, and to deceive as to the affiliation, connection or association of Defendants 

with Sansegal and a false suggestion of origin, sponsorship, and/or approval of Defendants’

goods and commercial activities by Sansegal.

29. Sansegal has suffered damage and irreparable harm to the goodwill and

recognition value in its GREEN BRAND mark by the false designation of origin caused by the

public presentation of Defendants’ goods using the GREEN BRAND mark.

30. Pursuant to Lanham Act § 34 [15 U.S.C. § 1116], Sansegal is entitled to

injunctive relief to prohibit any further use by Defendants of Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND mark. 

Additionally, Sansegal is entitled to an order directing Defendants to file with the court and serve

on Sansegal a report in writing under oath setting forth in detail the manner and form in which

Defendants have complied with the injunction.

31. On information and belief, such infringement by Defendants was preconceived

and with actual knowledge of the confusing similarity between their infringing mark and

Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND mark, and such infringement is therefore unlawful, deliberate, and
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willful, making this an exceptional case.  Thus, Sansegal is entitled to recover its attorney fees,

and up to three (3) times the amount of actual damages, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117 (a).

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Common Law Trademark Infringement)

32. Plaintiff Sansegal hereby realleges and incorporates by this reference paragraphs 1

to 31 above as if fully set forth herein.

33. A significant segment of the consuming public recognizes Sansegal’s GREEN

BRAND mark as being distinctive of and identifying a high quality product associated with a

single source.

34. Defendants’ infringing use of the mark is substantially likely to cause confusion

among the consuming public as to the origin of Defendants’ products.

35. Upon information and belief, Defendants’ infringement of Sansegal’s trademark is

willful and wanton, with intent to injure Sansegal.

36. Sansegal has been damaged and continues to be damaged by Defendants in an

amount to be established at trial, including Defendants’ profits and Sansegal’s lost profits, plus

punitive damages.

37. Sansegal has no adequate remedy at law for the damage to its reputation and

goodwill and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless Defendants are enjoined from their

infringing and illegal conduct.
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FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Common Law Unfair Competition)

38. Plaintiff Sansegal hereby realleges and incorporates by this reference paragraphs 1

to 37 above as if fully set forth herein.

39. Defendants’ actions constitute unfair competition and unfair business practices. 

The actions as alleged herein constitute unfair competition with Sansegal by creating a likelihood

of confusion and actual confusion as to the source or sponsorship of the products sold by

Defendants; by misappropriating the unique reputation and goodwill of Sansegal represented by

the GREEN BRAND mark, thereby injuring that reputation and goodwill; and by diverting from

Sansegal the benefits arising therefrom.

40. The actions of Defendants have damaged and will continue to damage the

business, market, reputation and goodwill of Sansegal, and may discourage current and potential

customers from dealing with Sansegal.

41. Defendants’ actions are unlawful and have caused and continue to cause

irreparable injury to the value and goodwill of Sansegal’s mark, as well as irreparable injury to

Sansegal’s business, goodwill and reputation.  Sansegal has no adequate remedy at law.

42. Upon information and belief, Defendants’ continued use of the GREEN LABEL

mark is deliberate, willful and constitutes a knowing infringement of Sansegal’s GREEN

BRAND mark.
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43. Sansegal has been damaged and continues to be damaged by Defendants in an

amount to be established at trial, including Defendants’ profits and Sansegal’s lost profits, plus

punitive damages.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Violation of State Unfair Competition Act, Utah Code Ann. §§ 13-5a-101 et seq.)

44. Plaintiff Sansegal hereby realleges and incorporates by this reference paragraphs 1

to 43 above as if fully set forth herein.

45. Upon information and belief, Defendants’ actions constitute an intentional

business act or practice that is unlawful, or unfair and leads to a material diminution in value of

Sansegal’s intellectual property, and is an infringement of Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND

trademark.

46. Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. §§ 13-5a-103, Sansegal is entitled to recover actual

damages, costs and attorney fees, and punitive damages. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Sansegal prays for judgment against Defendant as follows:

A.  That Defendants be held to have infringed Sansegal’s GREEN BRAND mark;

B.  That Defendants be held to have committed unfair or deceptive acts, practices or

misrepresentations in violation of Lanham Act § 43(a) and common law.

C.  That Defendants be held to have violated the Utah State Unfair Competition Act. 
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D.  That judgment be entered for Plaintiff Sansegal and against Defendants for Plaintiff

Sansegal’s actual damages according to proof, and for any additional profits attributable to

infringements of Plaintiff Sansegal’s trademark, in accordance with proof.

E.  That Defendants, their agents, officers, directors, employees, and all other persons in

active concert or privity or in participation with them be temporarily and permanently enjoined

from directly or indirectly infringing Plaintiff Sansegal’s trademark or continuing to use, market,

offer, sell, dispose of, license, lease, transfer, display, advertise, reproduce, develop or

manufacture any goods in connection with a mark infringing Plaintiff Sansegal’s trademark or to

participate or assist in any such activity.

F.  That Defendants and all persons in active concert or privity or in participation with

them be enjoined to recall from all distributors, retailers and all others known to Defendants, any

goods in connection with a mark shown by the evidence to infringe Plaintiff Sansegal’s

trademark.

G.  That Defendants be enjoined to deliver upon oath, to be impounded during the

pendency of this action and destroyed pursuant to judgment herein, all items shown by the

evidence to infringe Plaintiff Sansegal’s trademark.

H.  That Defendants be ordered to file with this Court and serve on Plaintiff Sansegal

within thirty (30) days after service on Defendants of the injunction granted herein, or such

extended period as the Court may direct, a report in writing, under oath, setting forth in detail the

manner and form in which Defendants have complied with the injunction and order of the Court.
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I.  That judgment be entered for Plaintiff Sansegal and against Defendants for the actual

damages according to proof, that such damages be trebled, together with the costs of the suit and

reasonable attorney’s fees, attributable to Defendants’s acts of unfair or deceptive acts, practices

or misrepresentations in violation of Lanham Act § 43(a).

J.  That Defendants be required to account for all gains, profits, and advantages derived

from their acts of infringement and other violations of law.

K.  That Plaintiff Sansegal have judgment against Defendants for Plaintiff Sansegal’s

costs and attorneys fees.

L.  That Plaintiff Sansegal be awarded punitive damages against Defendants.

M.  That Defendants be required to pay prejudgment and post-judgment interest until

such awards are paid.

N.  That Plaintiff Sansegal shall have other and further relief as shall seem just and proper

to the Court.
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JURY DEMAND

Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff hereby demands a

trial by jury of all issues so triable.

DATED this 6th day of February, 2008.

CLAYTON, HOWARTH & CANNON, P.C.

 /s/ Wesley M. Lang                                                    

Grant R. Clayton
Wesley M. Lang
Attorneys for Plaintiff Sansegal Sportswear, Inc. 
P.O. Box 1909
Sandy, Utah 84091
Telephone: (801) 255-5335
Facsimile: (801) 255-5338

S:\CHC Files\T 7--\T7462\A\PLEADINGS\COMPLAINT-20080206.wpd
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